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Storied Structure:
Architectural awe of Old Town Bangkok



Message from National Discovery Museum Institute (Museum of Siam)

Today, many places with historical significance in Bangkok’s Old Town
have grown old with time - some have become deserted, some well-main-
tained, some repurposed, and some completely transformed to fit contem-
porary functions. These places from the past have a wealth of intriguing
stories behind them, so it is crucial to preserve these history-rich places,
which are considered cultural assets to our country.

Museum of Siam, the National Discovery Museum Institute, is housed
inside one of the historical places in the Old Town. At the same time,
Museum of Siam plays a role in presenting Thailand’s social history,
portraying stories of local communities, local wisdom, ways of life, and art
and culture, through the form of a “discovery museum” which promotes
fun learning which encourages its visitors to keep discovering more and
use the knowledge in creative ways, while at the same time also promoting
a life-long learning socitey in Thailand.

Museum of Siam has sparked the trend for Llearning space tourism,
with an aim to inspire people to find out more about Thailand’s histarical
and cultural places, illustrating those stories through various forms of
art. Museum of Siam initiated Cultural District 2019: Art Festival to bring
the old places in the Old Town area back to life, while also developing
them into places where people can come and learn history. The Old Town
area will thus become a living museum, and visitors can feel inspired and
improve their creativity, using our country’s cultural capital.

Meanwhile, the MRT Blue Line is now in use and passes through this
area. In particular, Sanam Chai Station serves as a gateway to the cultural
hub of Thailand. It is a good opportunity to promote this area and welcome
Thais and foreigners to come explore this neighborhood, introducing them
to a new Llearning experience in this historical area.

This guidebook is your personal compass that will take you to explore
and experience important places in the past, some of which you are familiar
with, and some unheard of. Museum of Siam has collected architectural
information of more than 150 buildings in the Old Town, as well as their
background and the evolution of Bangkok, in this “Storied Structure”
guidebook for education, discovery, and tourism.

Rames Promyen
Director General of the National Discovery Museum Institute
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Storied Structure: Architectural awe of Old Town Bangkok

The Old Town part of Bangkok is a small area measuring only about
1,000 acres, protected by the City Wall and embraced by a moat. It has
been the center of the Kingdom since Bangkok was established as the
capital city.

It has been two centuries, and the Old Town, like everything else,
cannot escape from change. Formerly a port town in the Ayutthaya era,
it became the Kingdom’s capital, and later a part of a busy metropolitan.

Let’s take a look at what the Old Town has been through by looking at
the buildings in it.

The architectural style of each era not only demonstrates technology
evolution but also speaks volumes about the society and way of life at the
time, both of which have continued to evolve over the past two centuries.

Architecture in the traditional Thai era: In the beginning, old traditions
were maintained, and palaces and temples were the most significant.

Architecture in the Colonization era: In the second century, Siam
interacted with Western countries, and we adapted and evolved into a
more civilized version of Siam. The elite were into all things Western. New
businesses emerged, and we saw schools, theaters, hospitals, military
barracks, government mints, post offices, prisons, and cemeteries - these
were all in Western-style buildings. The people of Siam lived in Western-style
bungalows, and Western-style shophouses popped up along our roads.

Architecture in the Modern era: Things were simplified as we entered
the post-industrial revolution era which brought major political changes.

Architecture in the Cold War era: The US came into power and became
a role model. The city center began to lose its significance, and later became
just the Old Town as gentrification emerged in other neighborhoods.

Architecture in the contemporary era now: Bangkok is the dream
destination for travelers around the world, and people start to yearn for
the past and come back to the Old Town. Old buildings are restored and
repurposed. The Old Town area becomes a magnet once again.

Architectures in the Old Town Bangkok are where the East and the West
mix, and the old and the new mingle. They show us that Bangkok is not
deterred by changes, and will continue to evolve over time.
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Architectural Traditions of the Grand Palace

arfousnadnongommwunauagiiussduidlniidy iala
dnAyunInTrUAsAAD “NTruTUnngIeTe” Fedaifusudnansuns
AUANGANE UAZUAATINTEIENUNATBINTEUNNEFSE FAndn
“NTINWLMIUAT” vunefy “wszunsdudeinajnaidnouviomn” s
wmwlufidAda wesumindmsd fmsaiSaunszasfiiudonszauns

Fonaefiaredulmit Fofluadaunwdransuneiuiu
wesBunfuualssAtuamAvdiiuiey

When Bangkok was first established as the new capital of Thai-
land, the heart of the city was the Grand Palace, which was central
to the king’s absolute power as the king was likened to Indra, a god.

The newly built Grand Palace was thus constructed to emulate
Indra’s heavenly home.
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Amarin Winitchai Throne Hall in the Grand Palace was
constructed in the reign of King Rama I-1II (late 18th century -
early 18th century). The Throne Hall followed traditional Thai
architecture and has long been used for the king’s royal duties
and prestigious royal ceremonies, up until today.
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m Amarin Winitchai Throne Hall
£} The Grand Palace, Na Phra Lan Rd.
@ 8.30am-3.30pm
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) www.royalgrandpalace.th
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Diego Delso, delso.photo, License CC-BY-SA

The Throne Hall is a vast space, big enough to fit
a large number of people. At the center is a throne,
placed under a nine-tiered royal umbrella, symbolic of
the king. On the far end of the hall is another throne.
Both thrones have been meticulously crafted as they
were intended for royal ceremonies.

Outside, the gables of the building feature carving
of Indra residing above his palace.
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Sanam Chan Pavilion is a small wooden pavilion
Located next to Amarin Winitchai Throne Hall. It was
constructed in the reign of King Rama Il and was used
for informal occasions.

JYVK Sanam Chan Pavilion
ﬁ The Grand Palace, Na Phra Lan Rd.
© 8.30am-3.30pm
t, 02 623 5500 / 02 623 5499
7 www.royalgrandpalace.th
Not Open to the Public
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Dusit Maha Prasat Throne Hall was built in the
reign of King Rama I (late 18th century). The layout
features four gable ends, and featured on the gables
are carvings of Narai on Garuda, which is a symbol
of the monarch. The distinctive features of this Throne
Hall are the spire on the roof and Garuda and Naga
figures on the four corners of the roof.
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MDUS\( Maha Prasat Throne Hall
ﬁ The Grand Palace, Na Phra Lan Rd.
© 8.30am-3.30pm

%, 02 623 5500 / 02 623 5499

&) www.royalgrandpalace.th
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Dusit Maha Prasat Throne Hall has long been used

for royal funerals for kings and royal family members,
and the tradition still continues today.
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Aphon Phimok Prasat Pavilion

was built in the reign of King Rama IV
(middle 19th century). It is a wooden

structure, perched high above the
ground to serve as a platform for
mounting on an elephant or a palanquin.
The roof tiles are made of tin, while

the gables feature Indra’s figures.
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MAphon Phimok Prasat Pavilion
ﬁ The Grand Palace, Na Phra Lan Rd.
@ 8.30am-3.30pm Everyday
%, 02 623 5500 / 02 623 5499
1 www.royalgrandpalace.th
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Sutthai Sawan Prasat is Located on the
edge of the Grand Palace on Sanam Chai’s
side. It was first built during King Rama
I's era as an open wooden structure with
no walls, used for observing parades at
the field outside the Grand Palace. In King
Rama III's era, brick and mortar walls
were constructed, and the spire was added
to the roof. In 1950, King Rama IX granted
a grand audience on the occasion of His
Majesty’s Royal Coronation Ceremaony.

msmtha\ Sawan Prasat
ﬁ The Grand Palace, Sanam Chai Rd.
@ Not Open to the Public
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Architectural Traditions of the Front Palace
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F91a9 warwsesedeunsantuuaatu consist of the Royal Palace, or the supreme

monarch, and the Front Palace (viceroy)
as the second monarch.
Currently, the Front Palace is the
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NHABYHNGUYIHIEVILIBIAANY) 189 ground of the National Museum Bangkok.
WU LVUDUNIBUANATWNATINIVNRIWANU Let’s see if the poyaL paLace of the second

agvlsting

monarch is similar to or different from
the Grand Palace.
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Phutthai Sawan Throne Hall was built during the viceroy of
King Rama I's era (his younger brother). Inside, there is Phra
Phuttha Sihing Buddha statue, which is an important Buddha
statue of Thailand, relocated from Chiang Mai. The distinctive

feature of this Throne Hall is the mural paintings of deva (deities)
and Buddha’s history.

mehutmal Sawan Thron Hall
ﬂ National Museum Bangkok, Na Phra That Rd.
o 9.00am-4.00pm Wed-Sun except public holidays
. 02 224 1370
1 www.virtualmuseum.finearts.go.th/bangkoknationalmuseums
£ nationalmuseumbangkok
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Itsara Winitchai Throne Hall was constructed in the viceroy of
King Rama III's era and was used as the royal Throne Hall similar
to the Grand Palace’s Amarin Winitchai Throne Hall. Inside, there
is a royal throne at the far end of the hall, used for the viceroy’s
royal duties.
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JYUK itsara Winitchai Throne Hall JXIX Sivamok Phiman Audience Hall

ﬁ National Museum Bangkok, Na Phra That Rd.
° 9.00am-4.00pm Wed-Sun except public holidays

t, 022241370 t, 022241370

ﬁ National Museum Bangkok, Na Phra That Rd.
° 9.00am-4.00pm Wed-Sun except public holidays

l www.virtualmuseum.finearts.go.th/bangkoknationalmuseums I www.virtualmuseum.finearts.go.th/bangkoknationalmuseums

nationalmuseumbangkok nationalmuseumbangkok
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Siwamok Phiman Audience Hall was built in the
viceroy of King Rama I’s era. Formerly, it was used
as a throne hall of the Front Palace. The front gable
features a figure of Narai mounted on Garuda, while
the back features Brahma on Hamsa. Currently, it is
used as an exhibition venue for the National Museum
Bangkok’s temporary exhibitions.
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Samran Mukkhamat Thai Pavilion was
built in the reign of King Rama V (late
20th century), designed by Prince Naris.
It features Thai architectural style with
influences from other cultures. Formerly,
it was located elsewhere, but later moved
to the premise of the National Museum
Bangkok in the 1920s during King Rama
VII’s era as an architectural example for
Thai people to see.
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Long Song Thai Pavilion was built in the 1910s during the
reign of King Rama VI as a haircut venue. The pavilion was later
moved to the premise of the National Museum Bangkok.

m Samran Mukkhamat Thai Pavilion

ﬁ National Museum Bangkok, Na Phra That Rd.

° 9.00am-4.00pm Wed-Sun except public holidays

%, 02 224 1370
www.virtualmuseum.finearts.go.th/bangkoknationalmuseums

-{2 nationalmuseumbangkok

%, 02 224 1370

mmng Song Thai Pavilion
ﬂ National Museum Bangkok, Na Phra That Rd.
e 9.00am-4.00pm Wed-Sun except public holidays

www.virtualmuseum.finearts.go.th/bangkoknationalmuseums
{ nationalmuseumbangkok
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In addition to palaces and temples, the Old Town area of Bangkok is home to some
newly built traditional Thai architecture, designed by an architectural expert from
the Fine Arts Department Arvuth Ngoenchuklin, a national artist in Thai architecture.
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Bangkok City Pillar Shrine was built when Bangkok was
established as the capital city. Later, in the reign of King Rama 1V,
it was renovated and featured a cruciform floor plan with a corn

cob-shaped spire. It went through another major renovation on the
occasion of the Bangkok Bicentennial 1982 celebration.
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Maha Chetsadabodin Royal Pavilion was formerly home to a

cinema which was demolished in 1989 to reveal the view of the
Iron Stupa (Loha Prasat) at the back.
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m Bangkok City Pillar Shrine m Maha Chetsadabodin Royal Pavilion

£} Lak Mueang Rd.

© 6.30am-6.30pm

t, 02 222 9876

) Maha Chetsadabodin Park,
Ratchadamnoen Klang Rd.
@ 9.00am-8.00pm

i/ banghkokcitypillarshrine.com t, 02 224 8807 / 02 224 4599
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Santi Chai Prakan Royal Pavilion
) Santi Chai Prakan Park, Phra Athit Rd.
@ 5.00am-9.00pm
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Santi Chai Prakan Royal Pavilion: In
1999, the area around Sumen Fort was
renovated to create a public park and to
build a royal pavilion for the Royal Barge
Procession on the occasion of His Majesty

King Bhumibol Adulyadej’s 72nd or 6th
cycle birthday anniversary.
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Thai-style Royal Audience Halls
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The Audience Hall at Tha Phra Palace
was built in the reign of King Rama II. It
was used by Prince Chetsadabodin (later
King Rama III) to perform royal duties, and
later became the audience hall of Prince
Naris, who was an expert on Thai art
and architecture. Today, it is home to the
Silpakorn University Art Gallery.

Thai-style royal audience halls were not all extravagant. For lower-tier royal
members, their audience halls were simple-looking wooden structures on stilts,
painted with rouge. They looked similar to traditional Thai houses with gable roofs
covered with terracotta tiles. The palaces looked very ordinary, far from being
extravagant.
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maintained by the Kunjara family and is not %ﬁﬂuwﬁaﬁmq
open to the public.
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The Audience Hall at Ban Mo Palace
was built in King Rama III’s era and was
the residence of Prince Kunjara, King

Formerly, it was located inside the

JNEX The Red Residence JNFK The Audience Hall at Tha Phra Palace XX The Audience Hall at

ﬂ National Museum Bangkok, Na Phra That Rd. ﬁ Silpakorn University, Na Phra Lan Rd.

o 9.00am-4.00pm Wed-Sun except public holidays ¢, 02 623 6115-22

%, 02 224 1370 i www.su.ac.th/th/wangthapra.php
www.virtualmuseum.finearts.go.th/bangkoknationalmuseums

f nationalmuseumbangkok

Ban Mo Palace
) 128 Atsadang Rd.
@ ot open to the Public
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In 2006, the archeological excavation
was undertaken in front of the Ministry of
Commerce building after the Ministry re-
located to another place. The foundations
of the Audience Hall found led us to envi-
sion the design of the palace in the early
19th century.

The Audience Hall, similar to other
audience halls belonging to other sons
of the king, was a Thai-style pavilion,
with its long side facing the front. The
roof was made with unglazed, terracotta
roof tiles and the pavilion was built on
stilts. Its stairs were made of bricks and
mortar, about 3-5 steps in height. There
was space under the building. Inside the
Audience Hall, there was a long hall for
state activities.
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At MRT Sanam Chai Station Exit 1,
you can explore an underground site
museum which brings you archeo-
Llogical evidence from this very area.
We have created an archeological
excavation to show you the foundations
of a former palace.

Underground Site Museum
) MRT Sanam Chai Station, Exit 1
© 6.00am-12.00pm
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Fortifications of Bangkok

Tunnsadvsrsniiuvivindliuanasnadensafesuiiumsudusedmsuiiu
Usnnstlosiunszunsld autiuiinasnianuingssaulndunstiulull wawe
Anunswszuas Yautsinis wasvasy Svfiadufenaadwdrdgynugiuivialuls

dmTusmanananslusdulusiu
When Bangkok was first established as the capital city, it needed strong struc-
tures to protect its safety. Therefore, city walls and forts were constructed.
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Phra Sumen Fort was constructed in
King Rama I’s era at the mouth of Bang
Lamphu Canal (the city moat), on a strate-
gic Location vital to safeguarding the city.
It is one of the two remaining forts today.
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Phra Sumen Fort
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Mahakan Fort was constructed in King Rama I's era to protect

the city from enemies. It is located by a moat on the eastern side
of the city. It is one of the two remaining forts today.
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The City Wall in front of Bowon Niwet Temple is part of the Old
City Wall built in the reign of King Rama I.
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Bangkok City Gate was formerly made
of wood. In the reign of King Rama V, it

was torn down and reconstructed using
brick and mortar, with a spire at the top.

m Phra Sumen Fort m Mahakan Fort m City wall

£} Santi Chai Prakan Park, ) Maha Chai Rd. £} Phra Sumen Rd.
lasiaeazddn...Aanafiusswyguidunan Phra Athit Rd.
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Sanam Chai Rd. Sanam Chai Rd.
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Drum Tower was originally built as
a 3-story wooden tower in the reign of
King Rama 1, used to tell the time as well
as to alert the public in case of fire or
war. It was later demolished. The new one
was built to emulate the original one on
the occasion of the Bangkok Bicentennial
Celebration in 1982.
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Mounting platform is a platform used
for mounting into and out of royal vehicles.
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Former Temples before Bangkok’s Foundation Fanszimguu 1udalumufisieiugmm aco nintl
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Before King Rama [ established Bangkok as the capital city in 1782, !
Bangkok was only a small port town, a checkpoint for merchant ships before
entering Ayutthaya city. Therefore, in old Bangkok, there were four ancient
temples which had been built since the Ayutthaya Era.
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. ¥ Tyl aused Sermon Hall of Wat Pho faces the river on the west. It was
F-la mq\:”& MG ﬂu‘iwl,umi\‘ljuwm formerly an ordination hall in the Ayutthaya Era. Later, King Rama
Guulivin seuasasulanaisfian I built a new ordination hall on the northern side, facing the east.
Inside, there is an exquisite pulpit.
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[EK Sermon Hall of Wat Pho
) 2 sanam Chai Rd.

© 8.00am-6.30pm
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New Temples
when Bangkok was Founded
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Wat Phra Kaeo is the epitome of traditional Thai

architecture, a Thai equivalent of the Barogue. It is
situated on the ground of the Grand Palace. It was

built when Bangkok was established as the capital city,

and has been constantly maintained.

mwm Phra Kaeo
ﬁ The Grand Palace, Na Phra Lan Rd.
© 8.30am-3.30pm
%, 02 623 5500 / 02 623 5499
T www.royalgrandpalace.th
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The ubosot (ordination hall) houses a revered

Buddha image, the Emerald Buddha, brought to the city
from Vientiane, Laos.
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The walls and pillars are decked with
porcelain tiles custom made in China.
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The gable features wooden carving ﬂqmﬁ‘ha@:ﬁnmﬁumqﬁmm
of Narai on Garuda to symbolize
that it was built by a monarch.
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Garuda images adorn
the base of the ordination
hall, symbolizing garudas
guarding Mount Meru.
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In the reign of King Rama IV, a golden
stupa, a scriptures hall, and the Royal
Pantheon were built forming a single line.
The three buildings are of the same height
and are now the image of Wat Phra Kaeo.
The golden stupa is decorated with gold
mosaic tiles imported from Europe.
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Himavanta mythological figures are half-
god, half-animal creatures guarding Mount
Meru. There are six pairs of giants serving
as guardians minding the gate, each with
its own unique colors and expression.
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WatSuthatBangkok
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mx Wat Suthat Thepwararam

ﬁ Giant Swing, 146 Bamrung Mueang Rd.
© 5.00am-9.00pm

L 02 622 2819

@ watsuthatt.com

§ WwatSuthatBangkok
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Wat Suthat: A large temple at the center of the city, Wat Suthat was
built in the reign of King Rama I to house a big bronze Buddha image which
had been brought to the city from Sukhothai. The construction was completed
in the reign of King Rama IIl. The layout of the temple followed the concept
of the Buddhist universe, with the main vihara symbolizing Mount Meru,
which was considered the center of the universe. A cloister surrounds the
temple, and on the roof gable there is a carving of Indra on Airavata, his
three-headed elephant, a god who resides on Mount Meru. This is in line with
the concept of Bangkok being Indra’s city. The ordination hall is located on
the back of the vihara, and the roof gable which faces the east features the
sun, and the western gable features the moon orbiting the earth (the ordina-
tion hall) following the ancient belief of the universe.
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Temples in the Reign of King Rama lll

2 o o i a v a

qivalesnafl o uyaAsesiagy Trulsaiesysiagsia

1 a9 gl
v o o o2 o

Ansfndntszninessing swdnindeyalusiandfiAaaitdasiy
nisusugivimizaidnsnuiulng

Fuannnsysnizdaininuifiadnounusasesanafl o atineinlng
frauntsuanawszgiusalilngdu Tudswnsdlsniansdatinonisadn
AnsnssuausugaLauazlannsiuunluLFnanniziding

usnanfiudaduiidatoalngsonuntuualndstiounnune
21 TWMNEA1TW T097dRRN TaunsIeunsl saullaudivia
UITNEINE Uazdaudsiiing vaedontinaae

nyonwe luariesaniad o Avlddadududasfilnlauazioas
fiannuissfesasianduiingsrdagsanaduasiraifuntng
wiags

In King Rama III's era, the Kingdom was at its peak in inter-
national trade, and old temples from King Rama I’s era were
restored while the magnificent Chapel of the Reclining Buddha

was constructed. Additionally, many new temples, big and
small, were built all aver the city.
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Wat Pho is an ancient temple from the
Ayutthaya Era. In the reign of King Rama I,
a new ordination hall was built, and the
layout replicates the Buddhist universe
with Mount Meru at the center.
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At the entrance of the ordination hall,
if you look up, you will see mural paintings
on the ceiling, featuring the sun on one
end and a crescent moon on the other. The
sun and the moon orbit Mount Meru, which
the hall symbolizes.

D Wat Pho

A ) Sanam Chai Rd.
T © 8.30am-5.30pm
A % 02226 0335
7 www.watpho.com
8| f watphonews
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The new ordination hall built in the era of King Rama I was
small, and the version that we see today was expanded in King
Rama III’s time. A unigue feature of architecture from King Rama
II's era is eaves on all the four sides of the hall, with large
rectangular columns supporting them.
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The cloister around the ordination hall features a row of
Buddha statues. On the northwestern wing, the original gable apex
of the hall is showcased, which is larger than one would expect
it to be.
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The four Vihara Pavilions were constructed in King Rama I's
era. The gable features sculptures of Narai on Garuda (sym-
bolizing the Royal Palace status) and Lakshmana on Monkey
(symbolizing the Front Palace status, as it was built by craftsmen

of the Front Palace).
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Four-Reign Pagodas are a popular

photography spot among tourists. There
are four large pagodas. At the center is
a pagoda of King Rama I, decorated with
green mosaic tiles. To the right is a pagoda
built for King Rama I, decorated with white
mosaic tiles. To the left is a pagoda with

yellow mosaic tiles built for King Rama III,

and the last one is decorated with blue
mosaic tiles, built in the reign of King
Rama IV.
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The Chapel of the Reclining Buddha was
constructed in the reign of King Rama III in 1832.
It was one of the largest buildings in the city, built
to house one of the largest brick and mortar
Buddha statues, the fifth largest in the country.
The feet of the statue are decorated with mother-
of-pearl inlay. At the center of each foot is a
pattern of Indra’s heaven, which represents
Bangkok, a city believed to be home to the god.
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Gate Guardians are large stone
statues of Chinese and Western
warriors imported from China. These
are different from the gate guard-
ians at Wat Phra Kaeo which are
yaksa (giant).
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The Scripture Hall was built in the
reign of King Rama Ill, decorated with
Chinese ceramics which were popular
during his era.
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Miniature Mountains are small gardens which simulate Chinese
landscape. They are decorated with Chinese lanterns and stone
statues. One of the most famous mountains is the one with Siva

Linga on the top.
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Yogi Poses adorn the miniature mountains. They are sculptures
cast from tin and lead alloy, depicting traditional medicine knowledge
for the public to learn. These poses are based on Indian yoga
practice and can help relieve muscle pain.
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Wat Phra Kaeo at the Front
Palace was constructed in the reign
of King Rama III. It features large
rectangular columns which support
the eaves surrounding the ordination
hall, following the popular design of
that era. As it belonged to the Front
Palace, the temple is not allowed to
have a spire on the roof. Currently, it
is located on the premise of College
of Dramatic Arts and is not open to
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Wat Ratcha Natda was built in King Rama III’s era, located
behind Mahakan Fort, to honor the King’s granddaughter whom he
had raised.
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Loha Prasat, or Iron Stupa, was built in the reign of King
Rama III, following Sri Lankan traditions. It was meant to be a
place for monks to stay and meditate, but instead was used as
a stupa housing Buddha’s relics on the top floor. Even though its A wautegIu
name suggests, all 37 spires are made from copper, rather than Iawﬂingwﬁ?ﬂ%‘ﬁgm
iron. There is a spiral staircase at the center of Loha Prasat,
connecting the six floors.
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Thai architecture with Chinese style was popular in King
Rama III's era. Such architecture used Chinese-style brick
and mortar construction, which was more durable, to replace
wooden gables. The gables were then decorated with Chinese
porcelain tiles. In summary, while the shape was Thai, the
decoration was Chinese.
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Porcelain tile decoration was a technigue from
the South of China, known as Ziang Niang. The word
“zaing” means to cut the tiles into little pieces, while
“niang” means to paste something on plaster. The
technique is to cut and paste shard work to form
various patterns, and it was a popular method in King

KRama I's era.
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Lacquer is varnish resin derived from a tree,
used to coat wood and as adhesive for gold leaves
or mirror tiles, which were crucial to architecture in
the era of King Rama Il since many temples were
constructed. Chinese-style brick and mortar construction
was a solution to the shortage of lacquer at the time.
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Wat Bowon Niwet was built by the
Front Palace of King Rama IIl. The King
invited his brother Prince Mongkut, who
was a monk at the time, to reside in this
temple, where he remained for 14 years
until he later became King Rama IV.
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The Ordination Hall features a roof decorated
with Chinese tiles, while the gable was constructed
with brick and mortar, decorated with Chinese porce-
Lain. Inside, there are two main Buddha statues, and
the walls feature famous mural paintings with Western
influence.
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The Pagoda is bell-shaped and decorated with gold
mosaic tiles, which used to be a popular style in King
Rama IV’s era. The layout, which saw the ordination
hall placed at the front and the pagoda at the back,
was also a popular style in that era.
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Wat Thepthidaram was constructed
using King Rama III’s favorite style at the
time. It was built in honor of the King’s
first daughter, so the temple was decorated
with feminine elements, such as swans
on the roof gable of the ordination hall,
sculptures of Buddhist nuns inside the
vihara, and stone statues of women.
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Wat Thepthidaram

£} 70 Maha Chai Rd.
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Chinese-style brick and mortar monas-
teries. Traditionally, monks’ living quarters
were wooden structures on stilts, but
here, due to the Chinese influence, they
were made of brick and mortar, with Thai-

style wooden roofing and a small inner
courtyard.
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New Style of Temples in King Rama IV's Era
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The royal traditions for temple architecture changed in the
reign of King Rama IV. He preferred a bell-shaped pagoda at

the center of the temple, and the ordination hall was placed at
the front.
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Wat Ratcha Pradit is a tiny temple situated behind
Saranrom Park. It was built in King Rama IV’s era as
the symbolic temple of his reign. Originally, the area
used to be a royal coffee farm.

The Vihara serves as the ordination hall. Its roof
gable is decorated with gold and the Great Crown
of Victory, which was King Rama IV’s emblem. It was
built of Italian marble, which was a novel material at
the time.

Wat Ratcha Pradit
A 2 saranrom Rd.
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Inside the vihara, the door panels are
decorated with Japanese-style mother-of-
pearl inlays crafted in Nagasaki. On one
of the walls, there is a mural depicting

King Rama IV watching the solar eclipse
in 1868.
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A bell-shaped pagoda decorated with
marble, built behind the main vihara,
following King Rama IV’s favorite style.
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Western-style Thai Temples
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Western-style Thai Temples began in the reign of King Rama V during
which period Western influences started to arrive in Siam. It is not a surprise
that Thai temples were also influenced by Western architecture.

Wat Ratcha Bophit was constructed in the early years of King
Rama V’s reign as the symbolic temple of his reign. The temple
has a perfect layout, with a pagoda at the center, enclosed in a
circular cloister, similar to that in the temple of King Rama 1V.

AKX wat Ratchabophit
ﬂ Fueang Nakhon Rd.
© 6.00am-6.00pm
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The Ordination Hall’s gable decoration shows Narai
on Garuda and King Rama V’s royal emblem. The door
panels are exquisitely decorated, formerly located in

Wat Phra Kaeo in the Grand Palace. After a fire, they
were relocated to this temple.
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The Bell-shaped Pagoda is decked with painted

porcelain tiles custom-made from China, depicting
Chinese-looking divine gods.
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The interior of the ordination hall features a Gothic style with
” Thai elements, such as gilded elephants’ heads on its friezes.
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Siam under Westernization
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In the reign of King Rama IV in the mid 19th century, Western countries
began to arrive in Siam to establish a relationship, resulting in significant
changes. Siam was exposed to new knowledge from another side of the world,
and began to take an interest in modern science and technology to bring
advancement to the kingdom, from modern clocks to modern military, as
well as modern medicine, manufacturing, mapping, astronomy, education, and
architecture. The cityscape of Bangkok gradually changed, and in the reign
of King Rama V, the transformation was rapid as Siamese people were more
into all things Western.
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Clock Tower: This was Siam’s first clock tower, located
inside the Grand Palace. It was built in the 1850s in King Rama
IV’s era when Siam started receiving Western knowledge. It
was shaped similar to a drum tower, as both were intended for
telling the time. Later, it was dismantled in the reign of King
Rama V. The Clock Tower that you see now was rebuilt following

the old design, and relocated to Sanam Chai Road near the

Drum Tower.
Clock Tower

ﬁ In front of Wat Pho, Sanam Chai Rd.
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Saranrom Park
ﬁ Charoen Krung Rd.
© 4.30am-9.00pm
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Saranrom Park: Formerly a botanical garden part of
Saranrom Palace, it was designed by Henry Alabaster,
King Rama V’s British consultant and a botanical
expert. Alabaster was appointed by King Rama V to
oversee this project, a Victorian-style botanical garden
and zoo with various types of plants, designed for
Leisure. In the reign of King Rama VI, it was used to
host winter banquets.
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The Greenhouse: Built following the concept of
Victorian-style greenhouses, this one was not used for

keeping plants, but as a Western-style club for the
elite to mix and mingle, play cards, read books, and

act in plays.

@ mains:louuas
asvtuluatassniai o iufussias
uATIDINTNT nusulunszsnganany

Bandstand

© Us:QIHanHaD
Uszqundnnanifurasuaniudnannglsy 7
Tugaiususnsisnizauglnluazainidng snf
filszgindnnasuuniiuwnunnd ualimieu
Tasfiin upNanNazdaInanWUEWONHIEENIY
AnumsuslusieAnaniEeundn Auinufnan
Uszgasfinsuduiuluaiosaniadl ¢ detuing

Cast Iron Gate: Imported from Europe, the gate
featured Siamese coat of arms at the center.
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Chakiri Maha Prasat Throne Hall
ﬁ The Grand Palace, Na Phra Lan Rd.
© 8.30am-3.30pm
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@) www.royalgrandpalace.th
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Chakri Maha Prasat Throne
Hall: Designed by a British architect
John Clunis from Singapore, who
was commissioned to design this
significant throne hall in 1875
in King Rama V’s era, the throne
hall took seven years to complete.
Despite being a Western-style
building, it features a Thai-style
roof and the iconic three spires,

a signature of the Royal Palace.
Currently, the roof gable features
the coat of arms of King Rama V,
which is a Western-style design.
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Concordia Pavilion
ﬁ The Grand Palace, Na Phra Lan Rd.
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Concordia Pavilion: The Concordia Pavilion in the
Grand Palace was built in 1870 in King Rama V’s era,
following the design of a building in Batavia (then a
Dutch port city, currently Jakarta, Indonesia). It used
to be a clubhouse for royal cadets, and was later

turned into a museum housing royal tributes. Today, it
is used to welcome royal guests.
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Royal Cemetery at Wat Ratcha Bophit: Built to
keep relics of royal family members in King Rama V’s
bloodline, as well as monuments for his royal consorts
and concubines, the cemetery features four pagodas
decorate with gold mosaic tiles to represent four
of his main royal consorts. Other monuments have
different architectural designs, both Thai and Western.
The earlier ones feature gothic elements and sharp
spires like Christian churches, while later ones feature
Neo-Byzantine elements, also with an obelisk made
of carved marble, as popularly used for European
tombstones. The tradition of keeping relics inside these
monuments followed a Western cemetery concept.
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Royal Cemetery at Wat Ratcha Bophit
ﬁ 2 Fueang Nakhon Rd.
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The Royal Barrack: Built in 1884 in the beginning of King Rama V’s
era, this building served as a command center and residence for soldiers.
It featured a square plan surrounding an inner court. It was used for
military training and was designed by Joachim Grassi, an Italian architect

of Austrian nationality, who had designed many buildings in King Rama V’s
era. Currently, this building is the Ministry of Defense Headquarters.

Ministry of Defense
ﬁ 7 Sanam Chai Rd.
° 8.30am-4.30pm Mon-Fri, By Appointment only
L 022240717
@ www.mod.go.th
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The Royal Seminary
) 444 Maha Rat Rd.
@ Not Open to the Public
. 02 221 1501
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The Royal Seminary: Built in
1882 in the early years of King
Rama V’s era, located by the river,
the Royal Seminary was dedicated
to King Rama V’s royal consort
Queen Sunanda who passed away
in an accident. Initially, it was a
school for daughters of the elite
and also housed the Ministry of
Education. In 1906, towards the
end of King Rama V’s era, Queen
Saovabha asked His Majesty to set
up a girls’ school in this building,
titled Rajini School (Queen’s
school), which is still operating
today. It is assumed that the
architecture was designed by
Stefano Cardu because of the
pediment on the top of the front
facade, which is considered Cardu’s
signature.

The large dome on the roof
was rebuilt following the original
design after it had been removed
since the weight was causing the
building to crumble.
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Long Building, Suankularb School: Suankularb School was a Western-

style school which used modern curricula, with final exams at the end of

each academic year. The school had been moved from location to location,

before settling down here. The new school building was built in 1910,

designed by the Department of Public Works. The 2-story building is 216

yards long, and is therefore known as the Long Building. The building is

slightly curved, if you look at it through the long corridor.

Long Building, Suankularb School

) 88 Tri Phet Rd.
@ Not Open to the Public
. 022216701

@ www.sk.ac.th
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The New Prison: Built in 1891
in King Rama V’s era, the New
Prison followed the concept of a
prison in Singapore which at the
time was a British colony. Located
on the eastern side of the capital,
the New Prison was designed by
one of the most sought after West-
ern architects of the time, Joachim
Grassi. The three buildings are
located outside the fence served
as the prison’s offices, and today
the area inside the prison has
been renovated into a public park.
The buildings are now restored
and developed as the Justice and
Criminal Discovery Museum.
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The Royal Mint: Constructed in 1902 towards the end of King Rama
\’s era, it was designed by Italian engineer Carlo Allegri under the
Department of Public Works, to serve as a new mint responsible for the
production of Thai coins, replacing the old one inside the Grand Palace.

Its roof span is 11 yards wide and does not require supporting columns.
Currently, the building is home to the National Gallery.

National Gallery
1) & Chao Fa Rd.
@ 9.00am-4.00pm Wed-Sun
&, 02 281 2224
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Bamrung Nukunkit Print Shop:
Opened in 1895 in King Rama V’s
era, it was a leading printing house
located on Bamrung Mueang Road,
a business district at the time. The
business continued into the family’s
fourth generation, and was later
closed down around 30 years ago.
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The Royal Guard Regiment: Constructed in 1923 in King Rama VI's
era on the area that used to be an old prison in front of Wat Pho. It is a
Western-style building with a portico at the corner of the roads, featuring
the Siamese seal on the pediment. Currently, it is the Territorial Defense
Command Center. Inside, there is King Rama VI's Museum which displays a
collection of King Rama VI's wardrobes in a perfect condition. You can step
out on the balcony to enjoy the spectacular view of the Grand Palace.

Bamrung Nukunkit Print Shop
ﬁ 79-83 Bamrung Mueang Rd.
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The Royal Guard Regiment
ﬁ Charoen Krung Rd.
© 58.30am-4.30pm Mon-Fri
L 02221 1733-4
www.tde.mi.th/index.html
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Phra Ratchawang Metro Police Station
) 79 Maha Rat Rd.
o 24 hrs.
. 02 224 5050
% policepk.siam2web.com
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Phra Ratchawang Metro Police
Station: Formerly a palace ground,
the original construction was
demolished in King Rama VI's era
and rebuilt as a police station
in 1915, designed by Italian
architect Mario Tamagno under
the Department of Public Works.
It is a one-story building with a
load-bearing wall system and
reinforced concrete structures,

a new construction technique at
the time.
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The Ministry of Commerce Building: Formerly a cluster of four palaces
behind Wat Pho, in the reign of King Rama VI, the Ministry of Commerce
was established in 1920 and moved here in 1922. It was designed by
Italian architect Mario Tamagno. The 3-story building featured a load-bearing
wall system with reinforced concrete structures, so the walls were only
a foot thick. The building has been restored and developed into Museum of
Siam today. The distinctive feature is the stairwells at the center, which

use the walls to hold the weight of each step, so they do not require any
supporting columns.

Museum of Siam
£} & Sanam Chai Rd.
° 10.00am-6.00pm Tue-Sun
¢, 022252777
@) www.museumsiam.org
4 museumsiamfan
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Western-style Palaces
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The first group of people who became acquainted and adapted
to Western influences was the Siamese elite, especially the
progressive gentlemen. They were interested in Western-style
architecture and had their new residences built accordingly.

As Western influences crept in Llittle by Llittle, many Western-
style palaces emerged. Some of the remaining ones include
Burapha Palace, Narathip Palace, Palace of Prince Svasti Pravat,
and Palace of Prince Kritakara.
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Itsaret Mansion: The mansion
was a private residence of King
Pinklao, King Rama IV’s viceroy
and also the second king. It was
one of the first Western-style
buildings in Siam. At the time,
the buildings were designed and
constructed by Thai and Chinese
craftsmen. Despite being a West-
ern-style, two-story bungalow, the
use of space was not different from
a traditional Thai house, where the
dwellers would reside only on the
upper floor.

Itsaret Mansion
ﬁ National Museum Bangkok,
Na Phra That Rd.
© ©9.00am-4.00pm
Wed-Sun except public holidays
& 022241370
& www.virtualmuseum.finearts.go.th/
bangkoknationalmuseums
f nationalmuseumbangkok
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Saranrom Palace: Built in
1866 in King Rama IV’s era, the
one that we see today has been
renovated several times in the
reign of King Rama V. It was
designed by foreign architects to
be used as a temporary residence
for young princes whose actual
palaces were not yet completed.
It was also used to welcome royal
guests and as an office for the
Ministry of Foreign Affairs.

Saranrom Palace
ﬂ Sanam Chai Rd.
0 Not Open to the Public
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Narathip Palace: Built in early King Rama V’s era
as a residence for Prince Narathip, it was designed by
Joachim Grassi. Later, a road was constructed within
the palace premise, with shophouses for rent, so the
right wing was demolished, Lleaving only the left wing

and the central hall. The new road was named Phraeng
Nara to honor the Prince. The gingerbread-style wood-

en balcony overlooking the road was constructed later.
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Narathip Palace
ﬂ 63 Phraeng Nara Rd.
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Residence of Prince Svasti Pravat: King Rama V’s Private Secretary.
The Palace was tucked away behind shophouses. The main building has
been torn down, leaving only a secondary building which belonged to his
son.
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UNICEF
) 19 Phra Athit Rd.
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Charunsakdi Kritakara’s
Mansion: The first son of Prince
Kritakara, his mansion was built
in King Rama V’s era by local or
Chinese craftsmen. It was a small
mansion by the Chao Phraya River,
facing Phra Athit Road. The north-
ern side of the mansion features
a semi-octagonal bay window. In
King Rama VII’s era, it was used as
a temporary residence for Prince
Svasti Vatana. Currently, it serves
as the UNICEF office.
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Prince Kritakara’s Palace: Formerly, this area
used to be a city fort, before it was torn down and
a palace was built in its place on the occasion of the
5th cycle birthday anniversary of Prince Kritakara.
The Palace was designed by Italian architect Mario
Tamagno from the Department of Public Works. Later,
during World War II, it served as the command center
of the Allies and the Free Thai Movement. Today, it is
the FAO office.
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Chakrabongse Villa: Constructed as a recreational
home for Prince Chakrabongse, it features €nglish
domestic architecture. The family’s descendants still

live here today, and part of the palace premise is
converted into a boutique hotel.
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Tamnak Phet, Wat Bowon Niwet:
Built in the reign of King Rama VI
for Supreme Patriarch Prince Vajira
nana, the building was used as a
meeting hall for Buddhist monks.

It is a Western-style one-story
building, decorated with stucco
works featuring Thai patterns.

Tamnak Phet, Wat Bowon Niwet
f\ 248 Phra Sumen Rd.
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When Siam first tried to adapt to Western culture, the
Siamese elite had Western-style bungalows built along small
alleys which could only be accessed on foot, since cars were
not necessary at the time. They usually built a cluster of
bungalows, surrounded by roadside shophouses.

The homes built in the late 19th century to early 20th
century (King Rama V’s and King Rama VI’s eras) were
typically called “manila” homes with hip and gable roofs,
wooden louver windows, and gingerbread-style veranda
railings, ventilating grills, and trims at the eaves.

Later, the style shifted to a jerkinhead roof with bay windows.
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Bandhumasuta House: Located
inside a community behind Loha
Prasat (Iron Stupa), the house
formerly belonged to German
missionaries. When World War [
erupted in 1917, King Rama VI
declared war with Germany, and
the house was confiscated. It was
later given to the first generation
of the Bandhumasuta family, who

worked in the Revenue Department.

The layout was an L shape,
which was popular at the time. The
ground floor had a front veranda
and a hip roof with a jerkinhead
roof on the side. The protruding
portico at the front featured a
gable roof and wooden louver
windows with gingerbread trims at
the awnings.

Bandhumasuta House
fH Community behind Loha Prasat
0 Not Open to the Public
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Hidden House behind Mont Milk: This wooden gingerbread house was
built a long time ago, perhaps in the late 19th century. The style of the
house mimicked that of a Western-style 2-story brick and mortar building.
It has a hip roof like a Western home, but with two tiny gables at the
front and back. Interestingly, it is one of the few remaining homes in the
Old Town with terracotta roof tiles today.
120

~— 1SDoLlasInN:

dndu Aa?

fnfunlafinfiasedaufiu atnewan
UauAy

wiAednAlHfuAuTiu franansneds
fiadu fudonun dutinsneuwdng

ilnesaalfiAuingsunsiy Anfude
adwlingativlnnifien uandaugaed
dlaedeiviagsey

A R T [k (TGN
gurulaasouatlalannsiy UnuEauly
falwannanalisng

wsnadrongainwa du fnfiudeagmuti
WILUTUUNITETY woanuuaunylye
(moﬁLﬂu%ﬂiwiuﬁluﬁwﬁu)

fauTsEniat  latnalilnaannds
naveanllmiay

fivjsinednuniarasmszuas fAnnany
1aAIAT1TUAAT (MTDTAUNIITUNITIL

finnsunsasynaaulausey eld iy
Aufauauiuln

drunganiiniu (unsansnavay
Ysuunaavdiniu auruliiuaane
nasanwEuls Auaztiudufingu

fadugusuinmasinunssun

Wadnssmauusisnuiulugasans
Fannafl ¢ ForimegennTiane
Fndutiu

franansldAuAutu Sennsdudong
Sunuusteifiudauld IFasunndu
AniguunadlsoFouaniindluyasld

fpufiazfingdnurinouusssiuly
fosnagfidemie n Adidudidmas
Tsei3auluifagiiu

UusSosU asondndu
aoudulalavivasnsanfinfuuviei

a

senduzaunnenawaus)inge (analyen

=

A1) Aagsunaousslanassniadl ¢ vengu
S3nnafl o

taqifunemiuil ¢ foavandunyiizau
vdodl Baldsunisqualiaglusniniide

anwuzdaufidodugddouna (L) swiu
wwuatiuzesdauliluaedanasannail ¢ fo
S¥nnafl o

Anfiyzduasnuadiruntiiidanadnilasou
vilsuasiFau Lildagnsonanentnedininaiiu
AIANIINYNTT

Aufiuzinsufuesdinvifueduomi
tu waldidunnediangn

fiudnuuzianizasdaudoadiifasaia
Iifuanvrastinu Afussnuilaasey Adnaiy
sufenliisausmind9asissuiiunsous
Fosamuiulusiofaaiy

Jayagam House: Built in the early 20th century
(towards the end of King Rama V’s era or early in
King Rama VI's era), the house is now occupied by the
fourth generation of the Jayagam family. The layout
forms an L shape, as typical in homes in King Rama

\’s era through King Rama VII’s era, with a protruding
portico on one side, a front veranda, and cantilevered

suifienlifiuany tanzifludavilszglassay
Wadadnludeinsneluizaulsdnsoe

corridors on all sides of the upper floor.
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Hidden House behind Mont Milk
) 160 Off Dinso Rd.
° Not Open to the Public

Jayagam House
A 72-74 Tuek Din Alley
° 10.30am-1.00pm Mon-fri
. 022241093
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Thai Siri House: Thai Siri is a traditional Thai dance
troupe which has been around for a long time. In the
past, this private-owned dance troupe did performances
at the City Pillar Shrine. Their house is located on
Tuek Din Alley and is a 2-story wooden house with a
semi-octagonal bay window, which was a popular trend
in the 1910s-20s in the eras of King Rama VI and King
Rama VII. Today, the troupe is no longer in business,
and this house is now a guesthouse.

Thai Siri House Chong Kasem House
) 155 Tuek Din Alley ) 34 Tuek Din Alley
° Not Open to the Public 6 Not Open to the Public
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Green House on Tuek Din Alley
ﬁ 58 Tuek Din Alley
o Not Open to the Public
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Chong Kasem House: Originally, it was occupied by
the Department of Forest officer. The house forms an
L shape and is a “manila” style with a hip roof and a
gable at the front. An interesting feature is the wooden
pilasters with grooves to imitate stone masonry which
was popular in Western buildings at the time. Today,

parts of the house have been renovated and it Looks
different from its original design.
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Green House on Tuek Din Alley: It is assumed to
have belonged to a nobleman in King Rama VI's or
King Rama VII's era. The house has the same layout as
those on the same alley, with an L shape design. It has
external steps leading to the corridor of the upper
level. The house features cast iron balustrades and
perforated wooden ventilation grills. Today, the home
is rented out.
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Chandrasandhi House: The house originally be-
longed to a major general in the Chandrasandhi family.
It might have been built in the 1910s towards the end
of King Rama VI's era. The house forms an L shape
with a front portico and a jerkinhead roof, which was
a Western roof design. The house is slightly elevated
and the space is used for both storage and ventilation.
Its current owners, an architect couple, have restored
the house into a hostel named Baan Dinso Boutique
Hostel at Trok Sin.

Baan Dinso Boutique Hostel
) 113 Trok Sin Alley
& 096-565-9795
@ www.baandinso.com

Baan Noppawong
N 112-114
Soi Damnoen Klang Tai
L 02 224 1047
f Baannoppawong
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Navavongs House: Built in 1945 during the end of
World War 11, it is a 2-story house with a symmetrical
T-shaped layout and the protruding portico. It is a
Western-style bungalow, but adapted to suit Thailand’s
hot and humid weather. The house features Modern
architecture with a simple design. Today, it has been

restored and converted into a boutique hotel. The gin-
gerbread gable trims at the front were later added.
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Varnakovida House: The first
generation of the Varnakovida fam-
ily worked in King Rama V’s Office
of Secretary. He built this home
for his son’s wedding, possibly in
the 1900s - 1910s, or around
the end of King Rama V’s era or
early in King Rama VI's era. This
brick and mortar building forms an
L shape, with a veranda at the cor-
ner on the ground floor, used as
the entrance. There is a hip roof,
with gables at the front and the
side, decorated with gingerbread
gable trims, which used to be
popular at the time.
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Varnakovida House
ﬂ 64 Soi Damnoen Klang Tai
© 11.00am-3.00pm Tue-Sun
& 081922 6611
£ i “dhunssalnin”
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Vasavid House: Formerly, the house belonged to
the first generation of the Vasavid family, who worked
in the Royal Library Division under King Rama VI's
Secretary Office. It was built on a newly constructed
road in 1917. The layout forms an L shape with a
Jjerkinhead roof. It is elevated on stilts, with 3-4 steps
Leading up to the house. Currently, the house is occu-
pied by the family’s fourth generation, one of whom is
a famous fashion photographer.
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Niyamavibhata House: The house belonged to a
nobleman who was the first generation of the Niyam-
avibhata family, a teacher in the Education Ministry. It
might have been built in the 1910s in King Rama VI's
era. It is a 2-story house with an L-shaped layout and
a small veranda at the front. The current generation
has rented out the house to a political party, a bar,

a tattoo parlor, a Vietnamese restaurant, and now a
cool bookstore named World at the Corner.
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Gingerbread House: This house which belonged to an officer from a iwsedsnisan “Gingerbread”
Brahmin family was built in 1913. It has two stories and an L-shaped A7 “guuthide” uda sfiRnsay
layout. The right wing of the house has a protruding semi-octagonal bay Bun “lBnnanaviey” se “Banana
window, and there is a wide veranda on the second floor to bring in fresh Bread” 71 “vunilvndnuvan” gny
air. The perforated wooden vent features calligraphy within small circles, Ctatt
bearing the name of a man who was the owner of this house. Currently,
the present generation of the family has converted the house into a

cafe cum museum known as Gingerbread House.
Gingerbread House
World at the Corner ) 47 Soi Lang Bot Phram
£ 1 Soi Mahannop 1 © 11am-8pm Mon-Fri
Vasavid House © 10.00am-7.00pm Fri-Sun 9am-8pm Sat-Sun
) 108 Mahannop Rd. . 089 699 7074 & 097 229 7021
@ Not Open to the Public £ worldatthecorner § house2456
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Dr. Waan’s House
A goff Bamrung Mueang Rd.
@ 9.00am-5.00pm
. 02 221 8070
@ www.mowaan.com
f mowaan.bumrungchat.sassana.yathai
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Dr. Waan’s House: Built in 1924 as a clinic of Dr. Waan, a traditional
Thai medicine doctor whose business had been around since King Rama
\’s era, before relocating to this house. The apothecary is a reinforced
concrete building with reinforced concrete awnings. The rooftop was used

to drying herbs. Currently, the fourth generation of the family still contin-
ues the business, and opens this place as a small museum.
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Dr. Fuen Punyarataveja’s House:

This house formerly belonged to a
retired major under the Ministry

of Defence. After he passed away,
Dr. Fuen Punyarataveja bought it in
1926 in King Rama VII's era. It is a
half-wooden, half-brick-and-mortar
house, forming a symmetrical T
shape with a central portico and
terraces on both sides. Above
windows, there are perforated
wooden panels with star, crescent
moon, and a pair of rabbits, which
are motifs in islamic culture. It is
assumed that these motifs were
made by Malay artisans.
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Baan Pranakorn Antique Guesthouse
) 196 Dinso Ad.
& 084611 2115
@ basnpranakorn.blogspot.com
f baanpranakorn.hostel
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Baan Ya Hom
A 156 Soi Damnoen Klang Tai
@ 9.00am-9.00pm Tue-Sun
. 095 764 2768
f BAANYAHOMZANTIIS
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Dr. Song Punyarataveja’s House: Formerly a
marital home of Dr. Song Punyarataveja, with his
father-in-law contributing to the budget, this home
was built in the 1910s in King Rama VI's era. It is a
2-story house forming an L shape, with a veranda at
the front and a gable roof on the side with a cut gable
roof at the front. After relocating to a new house,
Dr. Song opened this house as a clinic for modern
medicine, while the area around the house was used
for producing traditional medicine, which was the
family’s business. Today, it is a spa and restaurant
known as Baan Ya Hom, run by the 3rd generation of
this family.
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Wiangket Mansion: The house is assumed to be built in the 1920s
around the end of King Rama VI's era or King Rama VII's era. It was
formerly a Ministry of Education officer’s mansion. Later, Chit Wiangket,
another Ministry of Education officer, bought it from the original owner.
Chit later Left the Ministry and pursued on his own traditional Thai
medicine business. The building is among the first to be made of reinforced

concrete with Western-style, half-timber design. It has a jerkinhead roof,
as common in country houses in €ngland.

D Wiangket Mansion
A | % 203 Trok Sake Rd.
T ° Not Open to the Public
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Hansakul House: The owner is the Hansakul family. The original owner
worked in Royal Office Bureau’s food & beverage department responsible
for banquets and caterings in royal ceremonies. This house is estimated
to be built in King Rama VI's era. It is a compact two-story manila house
with an L-shaped layout and a hip roof. The bay window at the front has a
gable roof. Currently, the third and fourth generations of the family still
reside in this house.

Hansakul House
) 80 Trok Sathien Rd.
o Not Open to the Public
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Varadrapya House: This house might have been
built in the 1920s in King Rama VII's era as a marital
home for an admiral in the Varadrapya family. Later,
it was used as his daughter’s marital home when
she married a Siriraj Hospital doctor. The house was
also used as his clinic. It is a 2-story house with an
L-shaped layout, and a hip roof with a gable at the
front. Since it was built later in that era, it does not
feature either gingerbread gable trims or perforated
wooden panels.

Kanchanahoti House
1) 22 Trok Sathien Rd.
° Not Open to the Public

Varadrapya House
) 48 Trok Sathien Rd.
° Not Open to the Public

Uluyusansauua

tiiliaAvinunanstnasngended dausa
pt¥eUq FuaTaNLafias uavanafauanunuly
Wingtinues fullwgmudminazaiviuluais
FUSENAT © IENAWATIHAIHA FunTinugy
ARDIVIADA

feunfinistarnunldsudafudnatanan
AUANUNTINAWBAUNAABAUA (MBIF qung
A7) NFUAPIALNA NTENTWUATLIA FeNTinu
ftinunseniads (AotaAssnunat vinda
YRS vdaitlaqiuFandniaysuas)

faulull wese noufinasasnulanifeidn
tpe savdunmdon YAgnSauTR (6 nryaulni)
Igdatinundsilse uazfiunsauniaunandudid
fu AgVBauTAdy waduvineuAingueniu
fpuazfheuvinfinsunssadsumaLTA
Aunsenonen

flaqiiutinundoinnifunnsunsiuiy aus-
anB yasaneunuasyuignbauti feand
pHAUATALATY

el
o

ansauznwandnunssudusauldianedu
fszifevuspnuanauaaslpasautny Useeu

v

seling ARNaAUNTN95I9I0) ATINUULWIIUTA
uartnuraWauT)InGn nsanfngu
fwatluazwinindideiu navuadiuainouaz

aaifuszidusiurastanasania

a

7l e Bosuszniadl o Viodu
fonnmAnsiiuglsnuea (L)
FofugUuuufidufifey
F5n0afl o
wavadunsoifunen us
asanantiniunsedadn Foiflu
AniaUNNTYinsendeaniife
unnluadessniafl » uin
AnTinuisnzlanavaIne e

Kanchanahoti House: This
house might have been built in
the 1910s early in King Rama
VI's era by a nobleman. Later,
it passed through many owners,
and in 1939, an officer in the
Royal Treasury Division from the
Kanchanahoti family bought it and
moved his family to this house. It is
a 2-story house with an L-shaped
layout, with cantilevered balconies
on three sides, decorated with
gingerbread-style wooden railings.
It has a hip roof with a jerkinhead
roof at the front portico.

Korn Limsakul
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Chintakananda House: This house might have been built in the 1900s-

1910s late in King Rama V’s era or early in King Rama VI’s era as a
residence for a nobleman from the Chintakananda family who worked as

a prosecutor. It later belonged to his son, an influential politician and gen-

eral in the 1960s. It is a 2-story manila house with an L-shaped layout

and a terraced entrance. It has a hip roof with an open gable at the front,

decorated with carvings. The house also has gingerbread-style wooden
balusters, gable trims, and trims at the eaves. Currently, it is under

restoration and will be converted to become a hotel.

Chintakananda House
1) 149 Dinso Rd.
0 Not Open to the Public



Phan Fa Masion: Located by
a canal in the Phanfa Lilat Bridge
area, this house might have been
built in 1914 as a permanent
home of a Thai widow whose
late husband was an influential
Singaporean businessman, Tan Kim
Cheng. The brick and mortar home
has a U-shaped layout, decorated
with perforated wooden trims at
the eaves, ventilating grills, and
signature corbels which have
become the house’s most prominent
feature.

Siam House
£} 591 Phra Sumen Rd.
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Purakshetra House: It might
have been built in the 1910s in
King Rama VI's era. Later, during
World War II, a former govern-
ment officer from the Purakshetra
family, who worked for a foreign
company, bought this house from
the original owner. The house has
two front sides. On the canal side,
there is an L-shaped portico and a
veranda. On the road side, there is
a semi-octagonal bay window and
an entrance arch.
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Purakshetra House
) 459/3 Phra Sumen Rd.
0 Not Open to the Public



Bhavamaya House: The house
might have been built towards the
end of King Rama V’s era or early
in King Rama VI's era. It belonged
to a nobleman who worked for the

court under the Ministry of Justice.

He was the first generation of the
Bhavamaya family. The house has
two buildings - the bigger one has
a hip roof, while the smaller one,
in pale blue color, has a gable roof
and carved pediments. It is deco-
rated with gingerbread gable trims,
trims at the eaves, and perforated
wooden ventilating grills.
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Bhavamaya House
) 320 Phra Sumen Rd.
@ Not Open to the Public
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Kraichitti Mansion
) 199 Khaosan Rd.

No.1 Restaurant
1) 119 Off Tanao Rd.
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Number One Restaurant: This restaurant is located off Tanao Road,
which is in Khaosan area, a popular tourist spot. It is a manila-style wooden

house built in the 1920s with a cut gable decorated with perforated wooden
panels in the shape of constitution atop two offering bowls.

Kraichitti Mansion: Built in
1909 towards the end of King
Rama V’s era as a new mansion
for a high-rank officer of the
Department of Fine Arts, the house
was later used as a marital home
for his daughter and her husband,
a judge from the Kraichitti family.
It is a Western-style, 2-story
house, with a central portico used
as a drop-off area. The manila
style house has a hip roof with
an open gable decorated with
gingerbread-style gable trims. The
interior is exquisitely decorated in
Thai, Chinese, and Victorian styles,
with a hint of €gyptian influence
seen in the bay window.
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Many shophouses popped up along
major roads throughout Bangkok, especially
towards the end of the 19th century (in King
Rama V’s era). This meant the economy was
prosperous due to free trade with foreign
countries. These shophouses also indicated a
shift from floating markets to roadside
markets, as a result of road construction.
Buildings in this era adopted a Western Look,
with simplified classic designs. They were
mostly 2-story buildings, and the ground
floor was used for business while the upper

floor was used for either storage or residence.
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Howard Sochurek, Life Magazine, 1954
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Chinese-style One-story Shophouses: Shophouses were typically made of wood, but later changed to
bricks and mortar like buildings in China. Such buildings have actually existed since the mid 19th century in
King Rama IV’s era, but are no longer around today. The ones that we still see now are from the 1910s in

King Rama VI's era.
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One-story Shophouses along Dinso
Road: Unit number 28 still Looks the
same as it did when it was first built.
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One-story Shophouses along
Satay Alley: Located in Bang
Lamphu area, it used to be a
community of Javanese people
from Indonesia who had migrated
to Thailand to work as gardeners
in King Rama V’s and King Rama
VI's eras. They used to sell satay
(skewered beef) in this area.

On a wall in front of one of the
shophouses, there is a notice about
rent receipts stamped on it.
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Shophouses in Straits Settlements Style: These shophouses have existed since the mid 13th century in
King Rama IV’s era. The King sent a team to observe the architecture in Singapore so that they could come

build the same buildings here for rent.
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Shophouses along Bamrung
Mueang Road: Built in King Rama
\’s era, the unigueness of these
buildings was the roofed continuous
walkway in front of shophouses
(five-foot way or Ngo-ka-ki), which
was popular in Singapore, Penang,
and Phuket. Today, the units have
extended to cover the walkway.
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Shophouses along Phraeng Nara Road: Built in 1837 in King Rama V’s
era, there are 120 units forming a single row with no space in between.
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Shophouses in Straits Settlements Style
(1] Bamrung Mueang Rd. (1] Phraeng Nara Rd.
1 Bamrung Mueang Rd. Y Tonao Rd.
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Popular Style of Shophouses: The standard style of shophouses came about in the 1900s late in King
Rama V’s era in major commercial districts in Bangkok. They were usually a large compound with many units
built in separated blocks, decorated with Malay-style perforated wooden panels and trims.
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Shophouses in Phraeng
Phuthon: There are about 120
units circling a big square at the

center. This area, located next to
Phraeng Nara, was a food hub.

Popular Style of Shophouses
ﬂ Phraeng Phuthon Rd.

ﬁ Sa Song, Long Tha Lanes
ﬂTanau Rd.

ﬁ Chakrabongse Rd.
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Shophouses on Sa Song / Long
Tha Roads: Located behind Wat
Suthat, there are about 150 units.
The ones along the northern part
of Sa Song Road look different
because they were newly built.

Formerly, it was a well where
monks would come take a shower.
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Shophouses on Tanao Road:
Located on the northern side
of Ratchadamnoen Road, it has
about 100 units on both sides. It
is home to the old traditional Thai
apothecary.
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Shophouses on Chakrabongse

Road: Located in Bang Lamphu,
forming a rectangle.
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Western-style Shophouses: Built in the 1900s-10s in King Rama V’s and King Rama VI's eras, these
shophouses were much influenced by Western trends, as seen in stucco decorations, pediments on front
porticos, Western-style window frames, and cement tiles.
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Shophouses on Charoen Krung
Road: Located by the bridge,
each unit is extra wide, with three
window arches in the style of stone
masonry. In Sam Yot area, each
unit has two window arches.
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Shophouses on Atsadang Road:
Located by the canal on the oppo-
site side of Saranrom Park, these
units continue from the ones on
Charoen Krung Road. Each unit has
only one window arch.
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Shophouses on Phraya Si Lane:
Located on the opposite side of
the Dutch drawbridge, its window
features Western-style triangle
pediments, and the corner unit has
three curved pediments on the roof
decorated with the Caduceus, or
two snakes winding around a staff,
which is the symbol of Mercury,
the god of trade.

Western-style
Shophouses
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Shophouses on Fueng Nakhon Road: Located near
the intersection that cuts across Charoen-
krung Road, these shophouses were built
in the 1920s in King Rama VII's era. The
design is simple, and the corner unit has
three curved pediments on the roof, simi-
lar to the shophouses on Phraya Si Road
on the other side. On a wall in front of
one of the units, there is a notice about
rent receipt stamped on it. The corner
unit used to be a Butler &
Webster showroom.
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ﬁ Phraya Si Lane
46 1 Fueang Nakhon Rd.
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Ban Mo Shophouses on Ban Mo
Road: Its window frames feature
stucco works in rustication style.
The shophouses are unigue for the
perforated wooden ventilating grills
above the doors.
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Moat Bridge: The corner unit used
to be Barrow Brown & Co store.
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Shophouses on Ban Mo Road near Flower Market: The last unit of these
shophouses used to be the location of Book Club, established in 1906,
which was the first bank of Thailand. It is now Siam Commercial Bank.
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Ban Mo Shophouses: This is another set of shophouses which still
remains today. It wraps around an entire block, surrounded by roads.
The window pediment on the second floor of the end unit is decorated with
pot-shaped stucco statues in line with the name of the area (“ban mo”
means “village of pot” in Thai).

Wally Higgins
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Mmmqummﬂuwmmom Corner unit of Ban Mo shophouses:

This photo was taken in 1959. The
building has been torn down and
Krung Thai Bank has replaced it.

Ban Mo Shophouses near the

Ban Mo Shophouses
Y gan Mo Ra.
) Ban Mo Block
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Shophouses on Na Phra Lan Road:
Built in 1909 towards the end of King
Rama V’s era, these shophouses used
to be luxurious as they were located in
front of the Royal Palace. The highlight is
the central portico with a large pediment.
Its ventilating grills over the windows are
semi-circular perforated wooden panels.
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Shophouses at Tha Chang Pier: It is the same set as the
shophouses on Na Phra Lan Road. It also features the same
style of central portico with a large pediment on the roof.
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Shophouses at Tha Tian: These shophouses were built
slightly after the ones near Tha Chang Pier, but the style is
similar. They form a U shape, with a market at the center.

) Na Phra Lan Rd.
ﬁ Maha Rat Rd.
) Maha Rat Rd.
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Shophouses with reinforced concrete awnings: In the 1910s-20s in King Rama VI's and King Rama VII's

eras, reinforced concrete was introduced and became a popular material in construction. Awnings, railings,
and ventilating grills were made of reinforced concrete at that time.
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Shophouses on Sumen Road in front of Wat Bowon Niwet: The unique

feature is the stucco works under the windows. The ventilating grills are
made of reinforced concrete.
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Shophouses on Sumen Road in Phan Fa area: They share the same style
as the ones in front of Wat Bowon Niwet. There are reinforced concrete
awnings on both stories, with stucco works under the windows as well.
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Shophouses on Tanao Road: south of Ratchadamnoen

AnuadlAvauuws:oNag
Shophouses on the bend on Phra Athit Road

Shophouses with reinforced
concrete awnings

ﬁ Phra Sumen Rd.

) Phra Sumen Rd.

£ Tanao Rd.

£ Phra Athit Rd.
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Shophouses with Rooftops: In the 1910s-20s in King Rama VI's and King Rama VII's eras, shophouses
were built with a flat top. Using reinforced concrete meant the buildings could be built higher than before.
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¥ I a519illnl wewe urng Shophouses on the bend
A.5.9. A.8.8. Huu near the Giant Swing: They are

Kamol Sukosol Building:
Located on Maha Chai Road, it has
a rooftop, and cantilevered eaves
on both upper and ground floors.

3-unit shophouse: near the
Bang Lamphu Roundabout, built
in 1932 with reinforced concrete
balcony railings.
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Gagananga Building: Located
at the corner of the Sam Yot
Intersection, it was built in the
1920s in King Rama VI's era. It
used to house a Japanese hospital
and a well-known clinic/pharmacy.
Today, it is home to a hip hotel
called Cacha Bed Heritage Hotel.
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Fazal Building (E. M. Katib
Store): Located on the corner of
Bamrung Mueang Road near the

foot of the bridge. It was built in
1931.

three stories high with rooftop,
reinforced concrete awnings, and
balcony railings.

o

Kyoto University Library

Shophouses with Rooftops
£} 665 Maha Chai Rd.
£} Tani Rd.
) 156 Maha Chai Rd.

Shophouses with Rooftops
ﬁ Bamrung Mueang Rd.
ﬁ Bamrung Mueang Rd.
) Chak Phet Rd.
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“New Thai,” a modern nation
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Bangkok witnessed a major change in the reign of King Rama VII due to a
global economic crisis and its transition into democracy. In terms of architecture,
Thai students were sent to study architecture overseas, and they became
important changemakers of the cityscape, replacing foreign architects in the
former era. These foreign-educated Thais have created many remarkable
buildings that we see today, and these are “Modern” architectures that
portray our society in the post-industrial era. The design focuses more on
functionality, and such design has become a symbol of democratic society in
Thailand.
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New Mansion of Prince Svasti Sobhana:
Built in 1930 in the reign of King Rama
VIl as a new residence for Prince Svasti
Sobhana (King Rama VII’s father-in-law),
the mansion was later occupied by Regent
to Thailand Pridi Banomyong after the
political reform. The building is made of
reinforced concrete and is 3 stories high,
with a simple design. It is one of the most
modern architecture of its time.

m The Chang Mansion
A 19 Phra Athit Rd.
@ Not Open to the Public
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2NUUUIALUNETNSA LUINBWAY (Charles
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D | EIFX Sukhumala Health Center
(Bangkok’s 2nd Red Cross Center)
T ) 80 Atsadang Rd.
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Sukhumala Health Center (Bangkok’s 2nd Red
Cross Center): Built in 1928 in King Rama VII's era
from the funds raised in the royal funeral of Queen
Consort Sukhumala of King Rama V, it is located at a
square in the middle of Phraeng Phuthon, a business
complex. It is a two-story reinforced concrete build-
ing. The first floor had examination rooms, and the
second floor housed nurses’ dorms. It was designed
by Charles Béguelin, a French-Swiss architect who
worked in Thailand.
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Memorial Bridge: Built in 1932 to mark the 150th anniversary
of Bangkok, the government at the time commissioned Dorman
Long & Co, a world-famous company from €ngland, to design this
bridge. Their most famous work is the Sydney Harbour Bridge in
Australia which was being constructed at the same time.

The layout of the bridge, roads, and gardens form the shape
of an arrow, which was King Rama VII's emblem. The bridge is the
bow, and the tip of the arrow points towards the Thonburi side.
The U-shaped end points towards the Bangkok side, and King
Rama I's statue is located on this side. This bridge is very strong
and durable as it is a through-truss bridge.

ﬂK Memorial Bridge

) Tri Phet Rd.
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Chalerm Krung Theatre: King Rama VII
had Chalerm Krung Theatre built on the
occasion of Bangkok’s 150th anniversary
celebration in 1932, at the same time the
Memorial Bridge was built. It is located on

a road extended from the Memorial Bridge.

The building is box-shaped with clean-cut
edges and a cut-off corner used as the
entrance hall. This reinforced concrete
building was designed by a Thai nobleman
with a degree in architecture from fFrance.
It was the best cinema in the city at the
time and the first air-conditioned movie
theater in Asia.

m Chalerm Krung Theatre

ﬁ 66 Charoen Krung Rd.

@ 9.00am-6.00pm

. 02 224 4499, 02 225 8757-8,
02 623 8148-9

b www.salachalermkrung.com
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IHEX Banglamphu Museum

) Phra Sumen Rd.

© 8-30am-6.00pm Tue-Sun

02 281 0345-51
ww.banglamphumuseum.treasury.go.th
§ pipitbanglamphu
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Printing School: Constructed in 1932
as Thailand’s first printing school, it was
later used as the Ministry of Education’s
printing house. It is a two-story concrete
building with an L-shaped floor plan. Its
style is simple and modern, and today it is
home to Banglamphu Museum which illus-
trates the stories of its Local community.
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Dome Building, Thammasat University:
The first building of Thammasat University,
the Dome housed the command center in
1936. It was remodeled from four existing
buildings which formed a single line,
connected into one building with a conical
spire at the top. The building has become
the icon of Thammasat University and is
known as “the Dome” despite the fact that
the top is a conical spire, not a dome.

IHX Dome Building,
Thammasat University
) 2 Phra Chan Rd.
@ 10.00am-3.30pm Mon-Fri
02 613 3880, 02 613 3840-1
www.tu.ac.th
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Court of Justice Building: Located by
Sanam Luang on the eastern side, it was
built in 1941. The design is Modern archi-
tecture as common in the post political
reform era. It is a large concrete box
which looks clean, calm, and strong.

It is one of the courts complex buildings
which have survived the mass demolition
in 2013.

LEUN W.A.ueEo UHUN W.Ameos

Court of Justice Building
) Ratchadamnoen Nai Ave.

@ nNot Open to the Public

. 02541 2258, 02 541 2309
VL‘ www.cgj.go.th
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Democracy Monument: Constructed in 1939 in Field Marshal
Phibun’s era to commemorate the Siamese Revolution on June
24th, 1932, the Democracy Monument has been with Ratchadam-

noen Avenue for so long that it has become the image of this area.
It is also used as the National Highway’s Kilometer Zero.

lm Democracy Monument
ﬂ Ratchadamnoen Klang Ave.
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m Commercial Buildings
Ratchadamnoen Avenue
ﬁ Ratchadamnoen Klang Ave.
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Commercial Buildings on
Ratchadamnoen Avenue: Ratcha-
damnoen Avenue was built in 1899
in King Rama V’s era, inspired by
€uropean avenues. The buildings
on both sides of the avenue were
built in 1939 during Field Marshal
Phibun’s government, designed by a
Thai architect who graduated from
Ecole des Beaux-Arts in Paris. They
are Modern buildings with a style
similar to Art Deco. These buildings
were built after the political reform
to make this area a commercial dis-
trict. There were various shops, two
Luxury hotels, one of which is Royal
Hotel, and the recently demolished
Chalerm Thai Theatre.
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University of Wisconsin-
Milwaukee Library
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Deves Insurance

) 97-99 Ratchadamnoen Klang Ave.

t, 02 080 1599, 02 670 LL4k
@ www.deves.co.th
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ﬂ 2 Ratchadamnoen Klang Ave.

Rattanakosin Hotel

. 02222 9111

?%‘ www.rattanakosinhotel.com
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People’s Party Society Building at
Saranrom Park: After the political reform
in 1932, the People’s Party, which led
the revolution, changed into a political

organization named People’s Party Society.

Its office was located at Saranrom Park in
a one-story, simple and modern concrete
building. At the entrance hall stood a
sculpture of an offering bowl, decorated
with mirror, holding the Thai Constitution
(similar to the one at the Democracy
Monument). At the time, Saranrom Park
was used as the venue for the annual
Constitution Celebration, a winter cele-
bration which took place on December 10
every year.
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Central Building, Poh-Chang Academy of Arts: This building
was built in 1946 after World War II. It is a Modern concrete
building with Thai elements such as gable roofs. At the entrance

hall, there are large cylindrical pillars with Thai-style decora-
tions. Currently, the building still remains in use.
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Rajamangala University of Technology Rattanakosin A
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www.pohchang.rmutr.ac.th 73
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National Theater: A large building in the Old Town, the
National Theater was constructed in 1965 in a Modern design
with applied Thai elements. The layout is a T shape with two wings.

The theater, which is the main area, is at the center. It is topped
with traditional Thai gable roofs.

ﬂK National Theater

ﬁ 2 Rachini Rd.

© 8.30am-4.30pm Mon-Fri

. 02 224 1342, 02 221 0171

@ www.ntt.finearts.go.th
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Bangkok City Hall: Built in 1955, the
design inspiration came from the Stockholm
City Hall in Sweden, with a large bell tower
as its landmark.

Originally, the Bangkok City Hall was
also designed to have a clock tower, but
it was later removed from the plan. The
design followed a Western-style modern
architecture concept which focused on
simplicity without too much decoration,
with a touch of classic design which focused
on symmetry. There are also elements of
traditional Thai architecture. The building
embraces the inner courtyard.
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ﬂK Bangkok City Hall

ﬁ 173 Dinso Rd.

a 8.30am-4.30pm Mon-fri
02 221 2141-69

& www.bangkok.go.th/main
prbangkok
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Old Town and Modern Architectures in the Age of Americanization
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In the 1960s, Bangkok changed at a rapid pace, and the Old Town part
gradually grew less significant, becoming a thing of the past. New buildings
were erected, and they displayed evident influences of the new power - the
US - during the Cold War.
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The 2nd Public Relations Department Office:
Located on Ratchadamnoen Avenue, the former building
had been built since 1907 to house Badman & Co
store. It later became the office of the Public Relations
Department. The original building was torn down and a
new one was built in its place in 1963 using a folded
plate structure, made with cast panels of reinforced
concrete. It was considered an advanced technique of
that time.

AFP PHOTO / STF
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D H02 Nightingale-Olympic Mall
A | % 70 Tri Phet Rd.
'I' o 9.00am-5.30pm Mon-Fri
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L 081 844 6248

@ www.nightingaleolympic.com
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Nightingale-Olympic Mall: This mall is more than
90 years old, opened in 1930. It was moved to the
current building in 1966. Nightingale-Olympic Mall
sells sport equipment, musical instruments, and
beauty products. The 7-story building has reinforced

concrete fins at the front facade, which was a trend at
the time. Inside, it still retains the 1960s style.
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) 2 Phra Chan Rd.
& 02613 2200
I www.tu.ac.th
§ ThammasatUniversity

H03 Thammasat Business School,

Faculty of Commerce and
Accountancy, Thammasat University,
Tha Phrachan Campus: Built in 1969
using a new structure without the
usual column and beam system, it was
constructed with diagonal reinforced
concrete structure, as seen in the
diagonal window frames. The building
sits on only 26 ground columns.

Thammasat University, Tha Phrachan Campus
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H04  Kasikorn Bank, Maha Chai branch
) 198 Maha Chai Rd.

@ Not Open to the Public

. 02222 3677

&/ www.kasikornbank.com

§ KBankLive
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Kasikorn Bank on Maha Chai Road: This building was constructed in
1971, designed as an ear of rice, which is Kasikorn Bank’s icon. The
architect molded concrete panels in an arched shape, which was a popular

trend at the time. Other Kasikorn Banks in that era all featured this style,
but their arches all looked different.

H05 Mazda Office building and warehouse
) Kamol Sukosol Electric, 663-665 Maha Chai Rd.
@ Not Open to the Public

02 222 2700-9
www.sukosol.com/pro-audio

@

Office building and warehouse
of Mazda on Maha Chai Road:
Located behind the office of Kamol
Sukosol Limited, a dealer of Mazda
at the time, the building was built
in the 1970s as Brutalist architec-
ture, with raw concrete similar to
the design of the Boston City Hall.
It was designed by the same
architect who designed the
Kasikorn Bank on the same road.
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Contemporary Architectures - are they Thai?
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There are not many contemporary buildings in the Old Town. There are
three main design concepts. The first is based on traditional Thai architecture.
The second is inspired by colonial architectures from the turn of the 20th
century. The last one is modern buildings following popular architectural
trends at the time.
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Scriptures Hall at Wat Maha That: This compact
Scriptures Hall was based on traditional Thai archi-
tecture, with a gable roof as seen in Thai temples. It
was built in 1972 and was one of the earliest works
of Sumet Jumsai, a renowned progressive architect.

NI wat Maha That

£} 3 Phra Chan Rd.

° 7.30am-6.00pm

¢, 02 2215999

@ www.watmahathat.com
82| § watmahadhatu
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Townhouses at the Foot of Pinklao Bridge: These
townhouses were built in the 1980s after the Bangkok
Bicentennial Celebration. At the time, old town conser-
vation and gentrification projects were in trend. The
design is inspired by Western architecture in the late
19th century, with wrought iron balconies. The town-
houses were designed by Sompong Panich and are now

used as a home, an attorney office, two guesthouses,
and a restaurant.

[EZK Townhouses at the Foot of IIEK The Old Siam Plaza
Pinklao Bridge ﬁ 12 Tri Phet Rd.
f chao Fa Rd. © 10.00am-7.00pm
. 02226 0156-8

€ www.theoldsiam.co.th
$ Theoldsiamshoppingplaza
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The Old Siam Plaza: The Old Siam Plaza is located
in a longstanding commercial district, Phahurat.
Formerly, it used to be home to Ming Mueang Market,
before it was demolished and replaced by a new
shopping complex in 1993. The new building has a
colonial design as popular in the late 19th century.
The lower floors are used as a shopping mall, and the
top floor is a penthouse. The project was designed by
Design 103.
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m Pridi Banomyong Library
) Thammasat University,
Tha Phrachan Campus, Phra Chan Rd.
© 9.00am-9.30pm Mon-Fri
9.00am-8.00pm Sat-Sun except public holidays
. 02613 3544
& www.library.tu.ac.th
§ ThammasatULibrary
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Pridi Banomyong Library: Located inside Thammasat
University, Tha Phrachan Campus, it was built by the
river in 1997 as an underground library with an inner
courtyard to bring in natural light. It was designed by

Sumet Jumsai’s company SJA+3D. Since it is located
by the river, humidity must be well controlled.
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In the 1980s, the Old Town grew old and shabby, leading to an idea for
gentrification to prepare for the Bangkok 200 years celebration in 1982.
This marked a significant milestone that turned Bangkok into a tourist spot,
and many old buildings were restored and repurposed. Bangkok is now one of
the most popular tourist destinations in the world today.

10D:7)SS | oo 1TDSIND ADSIUDS | LAD:IULUDSASS

ydnolGa a UHVNUWSVA)SS

U595t oL ulATINITARILID FINTUNTHEIIDINTUNTEARY

Phraeng Phuthon was a real
estate development project which
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NI The Bhuthorn
ﬂ 96-98 Phraeng Phuthon Rd.
. 02 622 2270

@ www.thebhuthorn.com

took place late in King Rama V’s

comprising of around 120 shop
units, surrounding an open area
at the center which was used as

development concept of other

of the units have been preserved
until today and converted into
boutique hotels.

IIEK 1905 Heritage Corner
ﬂ 66-68 Phraeng Phuthon Rd.
. 02041 0102

@ www.1905heritagecorner.com

IIEK The Neighbor Phuthon
) 104 Phraeng Phuthon Rd.
. 081 345 7767

# neighbourphuthon

§ The-8huthorn-coffee-and-History ~ § 1905HeritageCorner

era to create a commercial district

a public space following the urban

European cities at the time. Some
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1905 Heritage Corner is a corner building which

also has only three rooms. It is meticulously decorated
to reflect a Colonial vibe.
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The Bhuthorn was a pioneer in this area. The cor-
ner units have been well-preserved as the owners are
architects. This boutique hotel has only three rooms,

decorated in Colonial style which takes its guests back
to the previous century.
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The Neighbor Phuthon, also the corner units, has
about eight rooms. It features a contemporary and

simple design. The back of the hotel has been renovated
and converted into a small courtyard.
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Farm to Table, Hideout: The location of Farm to
Table Hideout was originally a townhouse with a small
open space at the front. The building was constructed
in the 1910s in King Rama VI's era. The building
is surrounded by roadside shophouses built in the
1900s, towards the end of King Rama V’s era. It was
restored into an original townhouse, repurposed into
a restaurant on the first floor and an office space on
the top floor.

m‘ Farm to Table, Hideout II!IK McDonald’s on Ratchadamnoen
ﬁ 15 Tha Klang Lane ﬁ 77/1 Ratchadamnoen Klang Ave.
© 9.00am-8.00pm Thu-Tue © 2% hours

. 02004 8771 . 085 488 0544

f farmtotablehideout g www.mcdonalds.co.th
McThai
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McDonald’s on Ratchadamnoen: Opened in 1998, it
generated a big buzz as it was a fast food restaurant
housed inside an old building across the Democracy
Monument. It maintained the original building’s
architecture, and the McDonald’s logo at the front is
crimson instead of red in order not to be too loud.

It is open 24 hours a day.
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Ratchadamnoen Contemporary
Art Center (RCAC): This building
is one of the commercial buildings
on both sides of Ratchadamnoen
Avenue, built in the 1940s in Field
Marshal Phibun’s government. It
was designed by a progressive
Thai architect who had been
educated in France. In 2010,
the Office of Contemporary Art
and Culture, Ministry of Culture,
requested to use this building to
create an art center, which was
completed in 2013.

While the exterior had to be
maintained as original, the interior
was restored and walls were
removed to create a large open
area, while the upper floor was
opened up to add more ceiling
height. The venue is therefore
perfect for showcasing art pieces.

lm Ratchadamnoen Contemporary Art Center
(RCAC)

ﬁ 84 Ratchadamnoen Klang Ave.

@ 10.00am-7.00pm Tue-Sun

%, 02 224 8030

’?Eﬁ www.rcac84.com

f rcacds
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Bangkok City Library: Bangkok has been designat-
ed a World Book Capital 2013 by UNESCO. Therefore,
the Bangkok Metropolitan Administrator built a public
library by converting one in a group of old buildings
on Ratchadamnoen Avenue, giving it a new life while
still maintaining the original Modern architecture on
the outside.

Bangkok City Library

) 39 Ratchadamnoen Klang Rd.

© 8.00am-9.00pm Tue-Sat
9.00am-8.00pm Sun

&, 02 282 0680

\‘1 www.bangkokcitylibrary.com

190 'F bangkokcitylibrary
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Chern Hotel: This area was formerly a mansion of
funezavaszdnatin

iuAsnuunelulasInig
Auunulddrsfnunanvanting

a royal family member, built in the reign of King Rama
V. In 1936, the palace was sold to a monk supply
business located near the mansion. In the 1970s,
since the building was in a poor condition, it was torn
down, and a series of shophouses was built in its
place. When the lease was up, these shophouses were
renovated into a modern hotel. The walls between the

units were torn down to connect the space. This hotel BITX chern Hostet

ﬁ 17 Soi Ratchasak, Bamrung Mueang Rd.
. 02621 1133 / 089 168 0212

’%\: www.chernbangkok.com

'F chernbangkok

has been in business since 2013.
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Villa de Pranakorn: formerly a large mansion,
the original building was torn down in the 1970s and
a new 14-unit shophouse was erected in its place,
because of the real estate trends at the time. When
the lease was up, the third generation of the family
renovated the shabby building into a luxury hotel while
still maintaining the old reinforced concrete structure.
It was given a facelift with a colonial design which
gives the building a sense of grandeur, with cleaner
details to make it contemporary.
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Chao Phraya Sky Park: Located around Phra
Pokklao Bridge, it used to be a deserted Skytrain
bridge across the Chao Phraya River, abandoned since
1992. Recently, it was converted into a public park,
which was officially opened in 2020. This sky park was
designed by Landprocess by a famous urban landscape
architect Kotchakorn Voraakhom.

m Chao Phraya Sky Park
) Phra Pokklao Rd.
© 5.00am-8.00pm
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Bangkok, a United Nations city
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Bangkok has long been home to people from different races and backgrounds,
so not surprisingly, it has many religious sites from different beliefs — Islamic
mosques, a Sikh temple, a Hindu temple, Chinese shrines, and even a Japanese
mausoleum! Architectural influences from neighboring lands like Khmer, Sukhothai,

and Java also add diversity to Bangkok, making it a vibrant city as we know it
today.
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Chakrabongse Mosque: Located in Bang Lamphu, this mosque is an
important religious site for this long-standing Muslim community. They had
been moved to this community from Pattani (Islamic kingdom on the Malay
Peninsula) since King Rama I's era. The mosque that we see today was

built in the 1940s in a Modern and simple design. Later, the Arab-style
dome was added to add a touch of Islamic identity.
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Ban Tukdin Mosque: This
mosque is located behind Wat
Bowon Niwet in a Muslim commu-
nity which had been around since
Bangkok was first established,
along with Chakrabongse Mosque
community. The original mosque
was a wooden house, and was
burned down in 1982. A new one
has been built in its place, in a
style popular in the 1970s-80s.
It has a minaret topped with a
dome cap at the front, designed
by a seasoned Muslim architect
who grew up in the Chakrabongse
Mosque community.
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Gurdwara Siri Guru Singh
Sabha: The first Sikh temple in

Thailand, it is located in Phahurat,

which was the first Sikh commu-
nity where immigrants from India
settled down after World War IL.
This new building was construct-
ed in 1979 and has become the
landmark of this neighborhood. It
features a golden dome just like
the Golden Temple of Amritsar in
Punjab, India. Inside, there is a
large hall for religious activities
and ceremonies. At the top,
religious scriptures are kept.

Gurdwara Siri Guru Singh Sabha
) 571 Chak Phet Rd.

0 6.00am-10pm

. 094 324 9258

£ SikhTempleBangkokThailand
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Dev Mandir: A Hindu temple behind Wat Suthat, it
was formerly in Phahurat area, and was relocated to
its current spot. The new building was built in 1969
following the style of Hindu temples (Mandir) in North

India. It is used for religious ceremonies and festivities,
as well as for Hindu Samaj’s offices.
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D [{ZK Dev Mandir Chinese Holy Shrine

A ﬁ Hindu Samaj, 136/1-2 Siri Phong Rd. ﬁ Saranrom Park,

]- ° 8.00am-1.00pm Mon-Sat Charoen Krung Rd.
8.30am-11.30am Sun a 4.30am-9.00pm

A t, 022238494

@ devmandirbangkok.com

§ devmandirtemple
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Chinese Holy Shrine: Housed
inside Saranrom Park, this holy
shrine is ancient but was rebuilt in
the 1910s in King Rama VI's era. It
is a tall hexagonal Chinese pagoda,

3 stories high, with Chinese murals
drawn by Chinese artisans.

Japanese Mausoleum: Located
inside Wat Ratcha Burana near
Memorial Bridge, it was built in
1932 in a similar design as Kyota’s
Kinkaku-ji Temple. It is used to keep
ashes of Japanese expats who
came to work in Siam in the late
19th century until today.

A Japanese monk resides here

to perform religious ceremonies.
During World War II, Wat Ratcha
Burana was destroyed by a bomb,
but miraculously the building
remained intact.

Model of Angkor Wat: Since it
was not possible to move Angkor
Wat to Bangkok, King Rama IV had
an Angkor Wat replica built in a
smaller size in Wat Phra Kaeo.

gawucddu KX

wansauavianladnfianniinenssuanuauaniingdgiadoat)
Aneluniesnulndunssiaevia?

gauduwisd FoudagRuuunnnaluiassysue (19
Aen daiuniiadnounsousaiungsanuda) el#ifunszgnang
Jijuiianfeaglusanuy

gradiuiuniidnuavineluaeufousianisf ¢ wé

dwidudngnznag Wuznunewan iuradn wilneusuiang
#19nw vua wuaWy uaidduiuensigaAiiuasiiy “ansgh
9" wiandslandfivsznavisnnlusnouau

T weww (5un1afl o) Saudijusidalungomne unie wee AU

vaifunszgnil uanadtulull weoe Auin o daauniols
afroifluanAnsAaundn o U ReuuuuinAinigd Aidasfudlng
(1Aaqln)

taqiudvasiinszdijuguagaia uaznaludoasiAvaym

R} gl
a

. = [ vy
uuwn‘sw‘ﬁawﬂm*smmﬁma &
~—— 13putdwon:
a‘ o o« a & a e Y A & o
Wiaganvinazesinidaunvadfaiulsolwiln Afuazwiunns Fadusegns-
AnamsaAlunisivziianieniAavl e dunusinsluavasulanasvi v
wsvaifiunszgnanadiuurisinduseavuszidauildatninndnids soade
naadvdug neludna lawssnuasmuadu axfifusnselswanndnda duganu
dituuvioll Amdnsaauile

uAs3aviaov

14 Tunnesaulngundwist Santlaanssufuienuasuay
a¥ngdag uiifunasiansuunmidn denguusnilni fiuda
wilazpenszuant nneluianszudariule

fiignoianngdn sunail @ nviingzsnasaiillfetsnamiu
uAsin iflavidunsng (ReuEun) Wethunadrolflungommne
(souztiudunmndodunsefuasny naussanifuiziuansnunuas
ddamalunansonn) witvunslnaiu Solilusausamannsy
Foflmunadauninunu wonlaudnuansainaniious apuguviniie
sndziniudiu ausesseiulasenislflufign

Fannaf @ Fonsaidounnlia¥ounsindianiidng anuuuy
439 uda sl luTanszuiauny

Im Japanese Mausoleum Model of Angkor Wat

£} Wat Ratcha Burana, 119 Chak Phet Rd. § The Grand Palace, Na Phra Lan Rd.
¢, 02221 9544 © 8.30am-3.30pm

@) www.watliab.com t, 02 623 5500 / 02 623 5499

£ Watliab @ www.royalgrandpalace.th
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D | EXEK Thawon watthu Building (Red Building)

Thawon Watthu Building (Red
Building): Located by Sanam
Luang, its construction began in
1895 to be used in a royal funeral
and a monks’ college. It was
designed by Prince Naris based on
Khmer architecture to show Siam’s
power over Cambodia. At the time,
Siam had a dispute with France
over Cambodia. The construction
was done in 1920. It was tempo-
rarily used as a library, but today
it is a venue for King Rama V’s
exhibition.
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The First World War Volunteers Memorial: Located in front of the
National Theater, the Memorial houses ashes of 19 fallen soldiers
who Llost their lives in World War [. The Memorial was designed by
Prince Naris, inspired by an old stupa in Sukhothai. At the time, Siam
was trying to incorporate Sukhothai into its history.
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In the Old Town, changes
were constant. Old buildings
steeped in history, whether
they were Thai or Western
in design, whether they were
shopping malls or theaters, or
even government offices, were
gradually removed, making
way for new things. The city
had to Kkeep evolving, and
change was inevitable.
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Elevated Open Pavilion at the Front Palace: Initially, part of
Sanam Luang belonged to the Front Palace, and at the wall of
the Front Palace, there used to be a royal pavilion, which was an
open wooden structure with no walls, built for King Pinklao, the
second King in the reign of King Rama IV. The purpose was for
this pavilion to be an observation point when there were marches
outside the palace. Later, the pavilion was removed in the reign of
King Rama V as more space was needed to expand Sanam Luang
into the oval shape that we see today.

203



30YSWIASUE

dofunausunsadndydmsuguiiaei
en faufudinfilngfigs lesmnsviuae
fign Tuwssupsadedufdls

nasfoiiaidusminfilssiveneauidia
WaldNteeesn LHnySEadgael nu-
MAWNYRUFATIAY LUTidU oc lsndsila
unlye

doifutodunegausng Adudinuunds
Aaadeilusiadussniadl ¢ suflugaod
anfinenssuuuuasiunniie B dufidantu
aenu

sanuuLlpgdulFonuadT LA e
1a91Au N5 (Joachim Grassi) Tull weow
sendudsrunaulving Aslinanieasnesiy ¢
iy wfatulssivlul veue

Fysundsudfadndanyuzuazdngiugn
savanuszidauaantnunssumanadnuiie 6nae
fogsng (U) yunawiitdupanuniindeandn
wuuAnsnan laseafrenioiutamein S48
Fesaiu wazifupiAsuuuasTUANFULINTIYIn
TuilalilupnAns Faausnaudadonisyinmilad
Tguizaudusiusma

navatafanlull wewe namlalidn
AudminidulseEauasininyia uaslseFou
WidlzennswszuAs nauazgniivinsll Yinafge
memswananinugfunedsliduenauliiu
il wewxe Wpdnasadugudnisén (daliusnns
Tul) wewo InaliFndngudnisdnioyswn au
#00

Burapha Palace: Built in 1875 early in King Rama
V’s reign as a residence for Prince Bhanu Rangsi
(King Rama V’s younger brother), it was the biggest
building at the time and one of the first Western-style
buildings. The layout was a U shape and the building
featured a classic style, designed by the famous Joa-
chim Grassi. Later, the prince’s descendants sold the
palace to a private company and it was converted into
a shopping mall.
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Badman & Co.: Late in King Rama V’s era, the King had a Western-style
building constructed at the corner of Ratchadamnoen Avenue, to be rented
out as a shopping mall. A British merchant rented the place and moved
his Badman & Co mall to this new building. The mall sold items imported
from Europe. Later, the Department of Public Relations moved its office to

this building, and in 1961, the old building was torn down and a new one
was erected in its place as the 2nd Department of Public Relations Office.

205



v o & =
arAsaaeliuviell 3alUlull weom
femgatngy afidulsonsuysna
& I ] o
Fuuuny aenefitiuguluilagiu

én U. nSU Nawgaa

Tudaeilgavinaunesaniadi ¢ linsollsas Wadrennang
widztuunan i iansunfufivinnsén aseiayuouy
SNy BeaswausnseAaing fofuaniidnAnfigauns
wszuastuaiieiu (A3 ﬁLLaniqﬁﬂizam‘Tuﬁmﬂu)

antriidunasnuniseanuuusasunaundle aunuley Weids
fnlull weee Tussniaf o vinv 9. n3u WWuuinly (3. n3u 1u
Aieasdu aeiuegAINAapIRaNALIAILARUTENIAT ¢ Laa)

adhannllaid daifusinmsingilalssngaudaluunsnen
#tuFeniudn vvlseaanuasn

\usinvaunslvajuuuvinasswAudalutiagiiu Adaudmant
ativdniuiaung SRunIwe919 Bn8aINgNstignaangng
Uszine

] meovo aunulszniAaATLALIEesTY Tuavasulanads
i o 0. n3u Fadudnawesiiudslaudedaiud dudlauiia
fnanueandvineas Walsdnedunnlifufiunu

B. Grimm Building at Sam Yot: B. Grimm building was a Western
building on Charoen Krung Road at Sam Yot intersection. B. Grimm, a
big German-owned department store business, rented this place to sell
luxury items imported from overseas. In 1917, Siam declared war with
Germany during World War [, and B. Grimm was ordered to shut down

and leave the premise to make way for new tenants. This building was
later torn down in 1969.
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Pridalai Theater: Late in King Rama V’s era, on the
premise of Prince Narathip’s palace (King Rama V’s
younger brother), Pridalai Theater was built. It was
a wooden theater, located along Phraeng Nara Road.
Inside the theater, on one side, there were boxes,
single seats, and row seats, with seats on the second

and third floors. The theater was destroyed in a fire
in 1946.
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Ming Mueang Market: Built in King Rama VII's
era, it was the central market of the city by Phahurat
Road. Ming Mueang Market was a Western-style
roofed market, featuring a large hall with a high
ceiling. It was constructed following an urban planning
concept, with shophouses surrounding the central
market. The market formed a U shape with hundreds
of shops Llining on both sides of the walkway. The
market later became old and worn out, and in 1978 it
was torn down. A new and modern shopping complex
replaced it in 1993, known as The Old Siam Plaza.
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Building at Khok Wua Intersection: This used to be a building, in the
same Lot as the other ones along both sides of Ratchadamnoen Avenue.
Over the years, various government offices occupied the building, and
later it was damaged in a fire during the October 14, 1973 uprising. It
had to be demolished, and a monument was erected in its place.
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B. Grimm Mall opposite Bura-

pha Palace: Prince Bhanu Rangsi
invested in the construction of this
building in front of his palace. The
area used to house a fort, and was
later rented by German business
B. Grimm. The business officially
opened in 1928. This new building,
designed by a French-Swiss
architect, was a reinforced concrete
building with two floors. It featured
a hip roof with a rising sun symbol
at the front of each gable roof, the
emblem of Prince Bhanu Rangsi,
the landlord of this building.
B. Grimm moved out of this building
in 1955 and the building was later
demolished. Currently, this area is
a parking lot.
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Chalerm Thai Theatre: Built
in the 1940s along with other
buildings on both sides of Ratcha-
damnoen Avenue, the construc-
tion had to be paused as World
War Il erupted. The construction
resumed in 1949, and it was
opened as a show theater, and was
later changed to a movie theater
in 1953. It featured a Modern
architectural design, similar to
other buildings on Ratchadamnoen.
Chalerm Thai Theatre was demol-
ished in 1989 to open up the view
of Loha Prasat (Iron Stupa) at the
back. At the time of the demolition,
Chalerm Thai Theatre was already
old and shabby, as the area was
no longer popular.
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Court of Justice Building: Built in 1882 in King Rama V’s
era, it was a Western building with a tall clock tower atop the
roof at the front. Later, the clock tower was removed as it had
begun to sink. This classic Western building was used by the

Ministry of Justice for 70 years before being torn down in 1960
and a new Supreme Court building was erected in its place.
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Former Supreme Court Building: Constructed in 1963 to
replace the former Court of Justice building which had been
around since 1882, the Supreme Court building featured a
Modern architectural design combined with Thai elements. It was

later demolished in 2013 and replaced by the current Supreme
Court building, despite strong opposition from many.
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New World Department Store: This modern
department store was constructed in 1984. It is 11
stories high, but the building permit actually allowed
only four stories. By the time the owner agreed to
tear it down, it is already 2004. Interestingly, during
the demolition, the Lower floors were still in service,
and when the building collapsed, many were killed and

injured, so the department store had to close down
and became deserted.
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01 City Gate in front of Wat Bowon Niwet
02 Pratu Phi (ghost’s gate) where dead
bodies were transported on their way to
funerals outside the city. The gate has
been demolished. Today, this area is known
as Samran Rat.
03 Pratu Chong Kud is a small door
in the wall, seen in the City Wall and the
Grand Palace’s wall, used as a service
entrance.
04 Ruins of an old palace’s gate on
Sumen Road, constructed in King
Rama I's era.
05 wat Pho's gate capped with a crown,
decorated with Chinese porcelains, which
was a popular style in King Rama III's era.
06 Wat Ratcha Bophit's gate is
guarded by soldier statues dressed in
a full Western-style uniform.

is a
Western-style gate in front of the Chakri
Throne Hall. The gate and building were
constructed at the same time.

still remains although the palace has long
been demolished. The gate was built in a
Western style.

was imported from Europe.

was
built by an Italian architect in the late 19th
century towards the end of King Rama
V’s era.

was built in the 1910s in King
Rama VI's era.
in the
community behind Loha Prasat.
is
decorated with gingerbread-style wooden
panels, a trend in the era of King Rama VI.

behind the Ministry of Interior today has
only perforated wooden panels remaining
at the top.
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